
1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ADVANCE PUBLICATION OF 
REPORTS 

 
 
 

This publication gives five clear working days’ notice of the decisions listed below. 
 

These decisions are due to be signed by individual Cabinet Members 
and operational key decision makers. 

 
Once signed all decisions will be published on the Council’s 

Publication of Decisions List. 
 
 
 
 

 
1. ENFIELD CHASE RESTORATION PROJECT - WOODLAND CREATION 

YEAR 3  (Pages 1 - 26) 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

PL 22/081 P 
 

London Borough of Enfield 
 
Portfolio Report 
 
Report of: Doug Wilkinson – Director of Environment & Operational 

Services 
 Peter George – Director of Property & Development 
 
 
 
Subject:  Enfield Chase Restoration Project – Woodland Creation 

Year 3 
 
Cabinet Member:  Cllr Rick Jewell – Cabinet Member for Environment, in 

consultation with Cllr Tim Leaver – Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Procurement and Cllr Ergin Erbil – Deputy 
Leader of the Council 

 
Executive Director: Sarah Cary – Executive Director – Place 
 
Ward:                        Ridgeway, Whitewebbs 
 
Key Decision: N/A 
 

 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. It is proposed to create 20 hectares of publicly accessible woodland on existing 

Council owned farmland at Rectory Farm, this builds on the 60 hectares of woodland 
that has been planted since 2020. The new woodland will involve planting 34,000 
trees and capture an additional 112 tonnes of carbon emissions per year. The new 
woodland is proposed to be planted in early 2023. 
 

2. This report follows the Portfolio Reports PL 19/107 P and PL 20/034 P which 
proposed the creation of 60 hectares of woodland. 

 
3. This report seeks approval to remove 20 hectares from an existing farm tenancy in 

order to expand woodland creation project that commenced in 2020. 
 

4. Further reports will follow to seek approval for future phases of the project as they 
develop. 

 
Proposals 
 
5. To convert 20 hectares of agricultural land to woodland at Rectory Farm. This 

involves the removal of this land from the area comprising Rectory Farm which will 
take effect as part of the renewal of the Farm Business Tenancy (FBT) agreement 
with the Rectory Farm tenant farmer which had been negotiated via the Council’s 
land agents, Knight Frank.  

 

Page 1 Agenda Item 1



PL 22/081 P 
 

6. To approve the proposed woodland creation and on these parcels of land at Rectory 
Farm and accept funding from Forestry Commission under the England Woodland 
Creation Offer (EWCO). 

 
7. To integrate Natural Flood Management (NFM) measures, such as ponds and 

wetland scrapes, into the new woodland landscape to reduce flood risk in urban 
areas downstream as described in Enfield’s Local Flood Risk Management Strategy 
(2016).   

 
8. To delegate authority to the Head of Parks and Open Spaces to authorise the 

placing of orders through any of the Council’s existing relevant term contracts or to 
invite and evaluate tenders/quotations and, where suitable tenders/quotations are 
received, to award contracts for the works as part of the delivery of the woodland 
creation project in compliance with the Council’s procurement rules. 

 
9. To continue to work with Strategic Property Services and other internal teams within 

the Council to explore opportunities and develop plans and funding bids for future 
woodland creation and associated landscape restoration measures. 

 
Reason for Proposals 
 
10. The proposals contribute to mitigating climate change by offsetting carbon 

emissions, as supported by the Enfield Climate Action Plan.  According to Natural 
England’s Carbon Storage and Sequestration by Habitat publication (NERR094), 
mixed native broadleaved woodland can capture 5.6 tonnes of carbon per hectare 
per year (allowing for 20% open space). This means that the new 20 hectares of 
woodland will capture 112 tonnes of carbon per hectare per year on average. 
Considering the 60 hectares of newly planted woodland in the previous two years, 
the overall woodland creation project would be estimated to capture a total of 448 
tonnes of carbon per year. The proposed planting will be allocated to meet the 
Council’s carbon neutrality commitments.  

 
11. Enhancements to biodiversity by creating and extending the network of lowland 

deciduous woodland habitats, a priority habitat as identified in the UK Biodiversity 
Action Plan, as well as the creation of priority wetland habitats within the woodland 
areas. The area forms part of the wider Enfield Chase, the former ancient woodland, 
therefore the project will contribute towards the restoration of this historical area. 

 
12. Reducing flood risk in the lower catchment of the Turkey Brook through interception 

of rainfall from the rural catchment by the newly created woodland and wetland 
features.  

 
13. The current proposals for woodland creation in the 2022/2023 tree planting season 

will attract estimated funding of ~£250k from the Forestry Commission, and 
potentially further funding from Rewild London/Greater London Authority with the 
inclusion of Rural SuDS features. 

 
14. Increased opportunities for recreational activities such as walking and enjoying 

nature, by improving access to Enfield’s Green Belt land, and associated benefits to 
public health and well-being. 

  

Page 2



PL 22/081 P 
 

 
Relevance to the Council Plan 2020 - 2022 
 
15. The project is closely aligned to Priority 2 of the Council Plan, which aims to promote 

safe, healthy and confident communities. In particular the Woodland Creation 
enables the improvement of accessibility and quality of blue green spaces, and 
contributes towards the Council’s pledge to plant trees within the borough. The 
project also helps with the Council’s climate resilience by working with nature which 
is a key theme in the current Council Plan.   

 
16. The project provides opportunities to work in partnership with different teams within 

the Council, as well as different organisations such as Thames21 (who will be 
leading on the volunteering events), the Forestry Commission, London Wildlife Trust 
(through the Rewild London funding) and the GLA.  These partnerships help in 
promoting Enfield widely to ensure that the Borough receives the maximum benefit 
from national, regional and sub-regional programmes which will enhance Enfield’s 
reputation across London and beyond. 

 
Background 
 
17. As part of the wider Enfield Chase Restoration project, it is proposed to extend the 

woodland creation proposals following the successful tree planting of 100,000 trees 
in the previous two phases. The third phase proposed to create 20 hectares of 
woodland at Rectory Farm, on land that is currently designated green belt and 
primarily used for farming.  
 

18. The wider aim of the project is to extend and restore some of the ancient forest of 
Enfield Chase by creating woodland with improved public access and biodiversity 
enhancements. It will also contribute to mitigating the climate emergency by reducing 
flood risk and increasing carbon sequestration. The table below summarises the area 
of woodland creation from the previous two years as well as the proposed woodland 
creation as part of Phase 3 of the project. Natural regeneration relies on trees 
growing from seeds rather than planting saplings, it therefore requires more time but 
is considered by many ecologists to result in a more diverse, resilient woodland. 
Some level of natural regeneration will be allowed in Phase 3; however, this is not 
significant and therefore has not been quantified. 

 
Year 2020/21 

Phase 1 
2021/22 
Phase 2 

 2022/23 
 Phase 3 

Overall 

Woodland Planting (ha) 25 25 20 70 
Natural Regeneration (ha) 5 5 0 10 
Overall Woodland Creation 
(ha) 

30 30 20 80 

 
19. This report should be read in conjunction with previous reports, PL 18.113 (Enfield 

Rural Catchment Project, which outlines the use of Natural Flood Management 
techniques to reduce flooding in downstream urban areas), PL 19/107 P (Enfield 
Restoration Project, outlining the funding from the Greater London Authority and 
Forestry Commission for the first Phases 1-2 of Woodland Creation) and PL 20/034 
P (to regain the land to facilitate Woodland Creation for the first two phases of the 
project).  

 
20. Following the previous successful phases of Woodland Creation, the Forestry 

Commission have encouraged the Council to develop further funding bids through 
the England Woodland Creation Offer (EWCO) grant. Consequently, a EWCO 

Page 3



PL 22/081 P 
 

funding bid was developed and agreed with the Forestry Commission (November 
2022).  
 

21. The below table outlines the costs of the project and the funding secured to date. 
The total funding secured from the EWCO grant is £249,775.87 which includes a 10-
year maintenance contribution of £57k. To deliver the NFM features, the Council 
have submitted a funding bid for the Rewild London fund and are expecting feedback 
on the success of the bid in January 2023. If funding is not secured, space will be 
provided to deliver these features in the future when funding is available.  

 
Project Cost Element Estimated 

Cost 
 

£000 

LBE 
borrowing 

 
£000 

External 
grant 

funding 
£000 

Funding 
Gap/External 

Funding 
Sought 

Tree planting, 
protection and other 
supplementary 
features 

233 40 193 (EWCO) N/A 

NFM Features – ponds 
and wetland scrapes 

50 10 N/A 40k from 
Rewild 

London Fund 
TBC 

Sub-total capital 283 50 193 40 
Tree maintenance (10 
years) 

57 N/A 57 (EWCO) N/A 

Sub-total revenue 57 0 57 0 
Project total 340 50 250 40 

 
 
22. It is proposed to commence tree planting in January 2023. This will be in partnership 

with the waterway charity Thames21, who have supported the previous two phases 
of Woodland Creation and will be leading the volunteer events. These planting 
events are envisaged to continue into March 2023. 
 

23. All works are expected to complete this financial year, in line with the tree planting 
season (November to March). 
 

Main Considerations for the Council 
 
24. The project involves the conversion of 20 hectares of agricultural land to woodland. 

These proposals represent an opportunity to expand on the successes and benefits 
of the woodland creation that occurred in the 2019/2020 and 2021/2022 tree planting 
seasons. The project helps to realise the Council’s objectives on providing better 
climate resilience and provides multiple benefits. These benefits include the 
capturing carbon, creating important habitats for wildlife and reducing flood risk in the 
Turkey Brook catchment. With the introduction of ponds and wetlands, there will also 
be significant benefit for reducing pollution generated from the surrounding farmland. 
The project will help realise long-term benefits for local residents, providing better 
access to nature and better quality nature spaces.  
 

25. The project has attracted significant levels of funding from partner organisations and 
have demonstrated high levels of public support. The previous phases of woodland 
creation have facilitated the formation of the Friends of Enfield Chase community 
group, who are playing an integral part in planting and establishing the woodland. 
The project also helps to support these groups in reconnecting with nature. 

 

Page 4



PL 22/081 P 
 

Safeguarding Implications 
 
26. There are no direct safeguarding implications to children, young people and 

vulnerable adults from these proposals. The rationale for this is that is an 
environmental scheme for improving an existing public asset by incorporating 
existing inaccessible space. 

 
Public Health Implications 
 
27. Climate change is the greatest threat to human health of the 21st century. The 

project contributes to the efforts of the Council to mitigate climate change. 
 
Equalities Impact of the Proposal  
 
28. Corporate advice has been sought in regard to equalities and an Equalities Impact 

Assessment has been carried out to support the project.  
 

29. The Equalities Impact Assessment demonstrates that the scheme will generally have 
a positive impact on Enfield residents, and has identified several mitigation measures 
to further recognise opportunities to reduce inequalities. The scheme will be 
designed in accordance with good practice to ensure it is reasonably accessible for 
all users; any new footpaths will be compliant with the Equalities Act 2010. 

 
30. It should be noted that any contracts awarded should include a duty on the 

successful applicant to assist us with meeting our obligations under the Equalities 
Act 2010. 

 
Environmental and Climate Change Considerations  
 
31. The Council has committed to being a Carbon Neutral organisation by 2030 and 

Carbon Neutral Borough by 2040. Natural offsetting through green infrastructure - 
including wetlands, tree planting and expansion of the natural environment was a key 
strategy of the Council’s Climate Action Plan. An appropriate accounting system to 
capture the sequestration of the land change over time will be established in-line with 
approved methodologies. 
 

32. The Climate Action Plan includes key actions around tree planting, woodland 
creation and flood defences which this proposal supports the delivery of. 

 
33. As reported by the IPCC, the effects of change are now unavoidable, and we must 

be prepared for climate hazards including a future with extreme weather, heat waves 
and flooding events. In addition to mitigation through carbon sequestration this 
proposal supports adaptation of the borough and the ability to respond to climate 
hazards and extreme weather events such as flooding. 

 
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not taken 
 
34. The following key risks relate to not implementing the project: 

• Loss of approximately £300k of external funding to Enfield 
• Loss of opportunity to increase biodiversity and wildlife habitat 
• Loss of opportunity to cooperate with the local community 
• Loss of opportunity to reduce flood risk and offset carbon emissions 
 

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that will 
be taken to manage these risks 

Page 5



PL 22/081 P 
 

 
35. The first few years following the planting of the trees is critical to their long-term 

survival. Key risks include browsing by animals, drought or flood conditions, 
vandalism, fire and disease. These risks and mitigation measures are summarised in 
the table below:  

 
Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigation Measure 
Browsing by deer / rabbits 
/ other 

5 4 - Protection with guards and / or 
stock fencing as appropriate 

Drought 3 5 - Carrying out planting as early in the 
season as possible 
- Ensure that surrounding vegetation 
does not outcompete trees for water 
- watering methods to be explored 

Land contribution / failure 
to meet funding objectives 

3 4 - The timely sign off of agreements 
and serving of notices being pursued 

 
36. Trees that were planted in between December 2021 and February 2022 as part of 

the second phase of woodland creation, were subject to a prolonged drought during 
summer 2022. The survival rates of the trees were estimated to be 72%, which is 
considered to be good given the extreme dry and hot conditions experienced in the 
summer of 2022. Any trees that survived this event are considered to have a strong 
chance of surviving future similar dry spells. 
 

37. The conditions of the EWCO funding require the woodland to become established at 
the stocking density planted. 
 

38. Once the land is taken out of the existing tenancies the land in question becomes the 
direct responsibility and under the liability of Enfield Council with no sitting tenant. 
The land will thereafter be managed by Parks and Open Spaces. 

 
 
Financial Implications 
 
39. The costs of capital works are expected to be £283k – to be funded from £233k 

external capital grants/third party contributions and £50k borrowing. £193k external 
funding has been secured to date. The Council is awaiting confirmation of a further 
£40k external funding from the Rewild London Fund. £50k borrowing is approved 
within the overall project budget. All spend is expected to be incurred this financial 
year, in line with the tree planting season.  
 

40. There is funding risk with regard to the £40k Rewild London Fund external funding 
contribution assumed but not yet received. If the Council is not successful in securing 
this funding, it will seek to reduce the scope of the project accordingly.  

 
41. Whilst not yet ordered, the trees have been ‘reserved’, which provides confidence 

around sufficiency of capital budget required. 
 

42. The creation of the new 20 hectares woodland carries with it an annual estimated 
revenue maintenance obligation of £5.7k per annum. Grant funding for 10 years 
estimated maintenance costs (£57k total) has been received as part of 2022/23 in 
year EWCO grant award. Any increases to this estimate will be managed from within 
existing approved revenue budgets for Parks.  

 

Page 6



PL 22/081 P 
 

43. Value for money assessment – this is the phase 3 of a project to deliver 80 hectares 
of new woodland within the area. The project benefits from significant levels of 
external funding and minimal Enfield Council contribution. 

 
44. As mentioned in Property Implications below, the estimated reduction in rental 

income is £2,500 - £3,000 which will have minimal impact on the overall performance 
of the rural portfolio. 

 
Legal Implications 
 
45. Section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972 permits local authorities to do 

anything which is calculated to facilitate, or is conducive or incidental to, the 
discharge of their functions.  
 

46. The Council has a general power of competence under section 1(1) of the Localism 
Act 2011 to do anything that individuals may do, provided it is not prohibited by 
legislation and subject to public law principles. The proposals in this report are 
compliant with the Council’s general power, which also encompasses the power to 
enter into contracts.  

 
47. If the Council will be procuring contracts using the grant monies or otherwise 

entering into partnering arrangements, contracts or agreements, it must comply with 
all requirements of its Constitution, Contract Procedure Rules (“CPRs”).   The Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015 (“Regulations”) will also apply, should the value of any 
contracts be above the relevant procurement thresholds. Procurement and contract 
legal advice must be sought where required. 

 
48. There are a number of external funders that are contributing to this project.    Care 

needs to be taken to ensure that all grant conditions that come with the grant of 
monies from these external funders can be complied with by the council.  Legal 
advice should be sought on this if and when required. 

 
49. The New Subsidy Control Act 2022 (‘SCA’) shall come into force on 4th January 

2023 introducing a whole new UK based subsidy control regime following the UK’s 
exist from the EU.  If any grant monies received for this project are to be paid directly 
to any enterprises that are economically active (such as private companies), then 
legal advice shall be required to ensure compliance with the new SCA. 

 
50. There must be adequate budgetary provision to fund the schemes that are the 

subject of this report and in particular that there must be sufficient financial support to 
service any contracts to be entered into to make this project a success.  Contracts 
proposed to be entered into must be in a form approved by the Director of Law and 
Governance and the council needs to be mindful of any grant conditions that are 
associated with external funders and whether contracts need to incorporate any 
provisions that are required by the grant funding.  The grant conditions may also 
have certain procurement requirements that may need to be observed so these need 
to be scrutinised at an early stage. 

 
51. Any existing council contracts that are utilised for the purposes of this project  must 

be used strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions of those contracts. 
 

52. The Council must at all times also adhere to the Duty of Best Value in accordance 
with the Local Government Act 1999. 

 
53. A farm business tenancy (FBT) is a tenancy that exists pursuant to the Agricultural 

Tenancies Act 1995. The report states that the Council intends to bring parts of the 

Page 7



PL 22/081 P 
 

FTB to an end by notice to quit part of the respective tenancies and that no 
compensation will be and will need to serve an appropriate notice. 

 
54. When part of a leasehold property is assigned or transferred rent is apportioned. 

Similarly, the Council is to agree to apportion the rent between the land to be 
surrendered and the land to be retained. 

 
55. The Council has statutory duty as a Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) pursuant to 

the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 to act in a manner that is consistent with 
the Local Flood Risk Management Strategy. 

 
56. The recommendations set out in this report are within the Council’s powers and 

duties. 
  
Workforce Implications 
 
57. This project will be managed through a combination of in-house staff within Parks 

and Open Spaces team, supported by external consultants such as Thames21. 
Enfield has already been working with Thames21 on previous phases of this project, 
and staff members at Thames21 have been secured to support the volunteer events.  
All costs for in-house staff and consultants will be recovered by re-charging to this 
project. Any additional staffing resources required for this project will be recruited in 
accordance with Enfield’s processes. 

 
Property Implications 
 
58. The effect of removing 20 hectares of land from the Rectory Farm Business Tenancy 

will involve a modest fall in rent income from that farm. However, the estimated 
reduction is £2,500 - £3,000 which will have minimal impact on the overall 
performance of the rural portfolio.  
 

59. All other property implications are to be found in the main body of this report. 
 

Other Implications 
 
60. The proposed woodlands will be managed by Parks and Open Spaces who have 

also been managing the new woodlands from the previous phases of the project. 
There have been some minor incidences of littering and vandalism to the previous 
phases which have been successfully resolved by the Parks and Open Spaces 
operational teams, working in collaboration with the Friends of Enfield Chase where 
appropriate. The proposals have also been discussed with the Principal 
Arboricultural Officer in Parks and Open Spaces. It has been agreed that although 
the proposals will require a change in the pattern of maintenance activities, the 
overall cost of future maintenance will not be significantly increased as only minimal 
maintenance is required, particularly during the first 20 years.  It is estimated that the 
maintenance requirements for the 80 hectares of woodland (overall) would require a 
Grounds Maintenance Operative for approximately 1 day per week with an 
associated cost of approximately £6k/year. These maintenance costs are covered by 
the 10 years maintenance funding provided by EWCO and will also be supplemented 
by Parks Services budget, additional funding will also be sought from external 
sources.  

  

Page 8



PL 22/081 P 
 

 
Procurement Implications 
 
61. Whilst this report does not directly relate to any procurement activity, it must be 

noted that any expenditure to implement this plan will be subject to the Councils 
Contract procedure rules. 

 
62. It will be expected that the trees mentioned in the report will be compliantly 

purchased and ensuring that sources are sustainable and ethical in line with the 
Councils sustainable and ethical procurement policy. 

 
Highway Services 

 
63. No Highway Services Implications.  

 
Strategic Planning 
 
64. The proposals have been discussed with The Planning Service, specifically Strategic 

Planning & Design in the context of Enfield’s recently adopted Heritage Strategy and 
emerging new Local Plan 2036. Discussions will continue with officers as the 
emerging spatial options for growth are refined.  It has been agreed that the 
woodland creation proposals are to be supported in terms of emerging policies to 
proactively manage growth, climate change and enhancing the borough’s blue / 
green infrastructure and assets, in particular measures for enhancing opportunities 
for greater accessibility to the Enfield’s Green Belt and reducing flood risk.  As 
detailed proposals emerge for the woodland creation project, the final design and 
planting areas will be assessed in terms of overall historical landscape and character 
impact and in the context of the Local Plan. The project will be closely coordinated to 
ensure no conflicts arise with the borough’s heritage strategy and future growth 
options. 
 

65. The New Local Plan will be underpinned by an Infrastructure Delivery Plan, which 
will monitor the progress of projects and programmes (including the Enfield Chase 
Restoration Project) in the context of the emerging policies and wider network of 
green and blue spaces. 

 
Options Considered 
 
66. Do nothing: This scheme is part of a series of improvements to improve the 

biodiversity and amenity value of Enfield’s rural land.  To do nothing will lose an 
opportunity to attract significant funding to the London Borough of Enfield, improve 
the environment, for both people and wildlife, and reduce flood risk to local residents 
and infrastructure. In addition, by not proceeding with this proposal the Council would 
miss an opportunity to make a positive contribution to reducing borough-wide carbon 
emissions and addressing the world-wide climate emergency. 

 
Conclusions 
 
67. This report recommends the approval of Phase 3 of the wider woodland creation 

project. This involves planting trees over 20 hectares of land that was previously 
used for agriculture. 
 

68. This recommendation follows from the success of two previous phases of the project. 
Further phases will be developed and delivered subject to the approval of future 
reports.  

Page 9



PL 22/081 P 
 

 
Report Author: Jamie Kukadia  &           Ian Russell   
 Senior Engineer   Principal Engineer 
 jamie.kukadia@enfield.gov.uk  ian.russell@enfield.gov.uk  
 020 8132 0965    020 8132 0964   
  
 
06/12/2022 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – Details of land for Phase 3 of woodland creation (map) 
Appendix 2 – Equalities Impact Assessment 
 
Background Papers 
 
N/A 
 

Page 10

mailto:jamie.kukadia@enfield.gov.uk
mailto:ian.russell@enfield.gov.uk


P
age 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

Enfield Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 
Introduction 
 
The purpose of an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) is to help Enfield Council 
make sure it does not discriminate against service users, residents and staff, and 
that we promote equality where possible. Completing the assessment is a way to 
make sure everyone involved in a decision or activity thinks carefully about the likely 
impact of their work and that we take appropriate action in response to this analysis. 
 
The EqIA provides a way to systematically assess and record the likely equality 
impact of an activity, policy, strategy, budget change or any other decision.  
 
The assessment helps us to focus on the impact on people who share one of the 
different nine protected characteristics as defined by the Equality Act 2010 as well as 
on people who are disadvantaged due to socio-economic factors. The assessment 
involves anticipating the consequences of the activity or decision on different groups 
of people and making sure that: 
 

• unlawful discrimination is eliminated 
• opportunities for advancing equal opportunities are maximised 
• opportunities for fostering good relations are maximised. 

 
The EqIA is carried out by completing this form. To complete it you will need to: 
 

• use local or national research which relates to how the activity/ policy/ 
strategy/ budget change or decision being made may impact on different 
people in different ways based on their protected characteristic or socio-
economic status; 

• where possible, analyse any equality data we have on the people in Enfield 
who will be affected eg equality data on service users and/or equality data on 
the Enfield population; 

• refer to the engagement and/ or consultation you have carried out with 
stakeholders, including the community and/or voluntary and community sector 
groups you consulted and their views. Consider what this engagement 
showed us about the likely impact of the activity/ policy/ strategy/ budget 
change or decision on different groups. 

 
The results of the EqIA should be used to inform the proposal/ recommended 
decision and changes should be made to the proposal/ recommended decision as a 
result of the assessment where required. Any ongoing/ future mitigating actions 
required should be set out in the action plan at the end of the assessment. 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 13



 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

 

Section 1 – Equality analysis details 
 

Title of service activity / policy/ 
strategy/ budget change/ decision that 
you are assessing 
 

Enfield Chase Woodland Creation, 
Phase 3 – Rectory Farm 

Team/ Department 
 

Watercourses, Parks & Operations 

Executive Director  
 

Joanne Drew, Acting Executive 
Director of Place  

Cabinet Member Cllr Rick Jewell 

Author(s) name(s) and contact details  
 

Jamie Kukadia 
Jamie.kukadia@enfield.gov.uk  
020 8132 0965 

Committee name and date of decision  
 

N/A 

 

Date the EqIA was reviewed by the 
Corporate Strategy Service 

15 December 2022 

Name of Head of Service responsible 
for implementing the EqIA actions (if 
any) 

Marcus Harvey 

Name of Director who has approved 
the EqIA 

Doug Wilkinson 

 

The completed EqIA should be included as an appendix to relevant EMT/ Delegated 
Authority/ Cabinet/ Council reports regarding the service activity/ policy/ strategy/ 
budget change/ decision. Decision-makers should be confident that a robust EqIA 
has taken place, that any necessary mitigating action has been taken and that there 
are robust arrangements in place to ensure any necessary ongoing actions are 
delivered. 

 
Section 2 – Summary of proposal 
 

Please give a brief summary of the proposed service change / policy/ strategy/ 
budget change/project plan/ key decision  
 
Please summarise briefly:  
 
What is the proposed decision or change? 
What are the reasons for the decision or change? 

Page 14

mailto:Jamie.kukadia@enfield.gov.uk


 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

What outcomes are you hoping to achieve from this change? 
Who will be impacted by the project or change - staff, service users, or the wider 
community?  
 
 
It is proposed to create 20 hectares of publicly accessible woodland on existing Council 
owned farmland at Rectory Farm, this builds on the 60 hectares of woodland that has 
been planted since 2020. This means that land that was under previous agricultural use 
will now come under the Parks Operations management portfolio. The new woodland will 
involve planting 34,000 trees and capture an additional 112 tonnes of carbon emissions 
per year. The new woodland is proposed to be planted in early 2023 with volunteers. 
 
The cumulative impact of the woodland project helps to sequester carbon and reduce the 
impact of flooding in the southeast of the borough where most of the flood risk is 
concentrated. Consequently, the areas that have the highest flood risk are also areas of 
the highest deprivation and highest population density in Enfield. The project may 
therefore have a positive impact in terms of climate resilience for the wider borough. 
 
The Equality Act 2010 prohibits direct and indirect discrimination on grounds of any 
protected characteristic in the provision of services and facilities. Local authorities 
managing blue and green spaces have a duty to advance equality of opportunity in access 
and quality of those spaces. 
 
The woodland creation scheme aligns with the objectives of the Local Flood Risk 
Management Strategy (2016), Climate Change Action Plan (2021) and Blue & Green 
Strategy (2021). 
 
 
 

 

  

Page 15



 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

Section 3 – Equality analysis 
 

This section asks you to consider the potential differential impact of the proposed 
decision or change on different protected characteristics, and what mitigating actions 
should be taken to avoid or counteract any negative impact. 

According to the Equality Act 2010, protected characteristics are aspects of a 
person’s identity that make them who they are. The law defines 9 protected 
characteristics: 

1. Age 
2. Disability 
3. Gender reassignment. 
4. Marriage and civil partnership. 
5. Pregnancy and maternity. 
6. Race 
7. Religion or belief. 
8. Sex 
9. Sexual orientation. 

At Enfield Council, we also consider socio-economic status as an additional 
characteristic. 

“Differential impact” means that people of a particular protected characteristic (eg 
people of a particular age, people with a disability, people of a particular gender, or 
people from a particular race and religion) will be significantly more affected by the 
change than other groups. Please consider both potential positive and negative 
impacts, and provide evidence to explain why this group might be particularly 
affected. If there is no differential impact for that group, briefly explain why this is not 
applicable. 

Please consider how the proposed change will affect staff, service users or members 
of the wider community who share one of the following protected characteristics. 

Detailed information and guidance on how to carry out an Equality Impact 
Assessment is available here. (link to guidance document once approved) 

  

Page 16



 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

Age 
 
This can refer to people of a specific age e.g. 18-year olds, or age range e.g. 0-18 
year olds.  
 
Will the proposed change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact 
[positive or negative] on people of a specific age or age group (e.g. older or 
younger people)?  
 
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected. 
The proposals are expected to have a positive effect on age groups, as people of 
all age groups will have access to the woodland once it has established. The new 
woodland will improve access to nature which brings benefits to health and 
wellbeing.  
 
In previous phases of the woodland creation project a 3.3km section of the London 
Loop was upgraded which allows better access to the woodland for schools (for 
outdoor classrooms), and more older people who may have found the previously 
muddy parts of the London Loop challenging.  
 
Children and young people in Enfield are less likely to be physically active. In 
2020/21, 31.8% of children and young people in Enfield did at least 60 minutes of 
physical activity each day, compared to 44.4% of children and young people in 
London and 44.6% nationally.1 The project will improve access to the borough’s 
Green Belt land, thereby increasing opportunities for recreational activities such as 
walking and enjoying nature.  
The proportion of over 65s in Enfield has grown by 16% in the last ten years.2  
Due to time pressures and reduced staffing for this phase of woodland planting, 
engagement with schools has been minimal. However, greater consideration on 
how the wider project engages with young people and the elderly will be applied to 
future phases of the woodland creation.  
 
Mitigating actions to be taken 
N/A 

 
Disability 
 
A person has a disability if they have a physical or mental impairment which has a 
substantial and long-term adverse effect on the person’s ability to carry out normal 
day-day activities.  
 

 
1 Sport England Active Lives Survey 
2 ONS, Population and household estimates, England and Wales: Census 2021 

Page 17

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/datasets/populationandhouseholdestimatesenglandandwalescensus2021%5d


 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

This could include: physical impairment, hearing impairment, visual impairment, 
learning difficulties, long-standing illness or health condition, mental illness, 
substance abuse or other impairments.  
 
Will the proposed change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact 
[positive or negative] on people with disabilities? 
 
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected. 
The future scope of the scheme will be to provide more formal paths, so parts of 
the woodland can be accessible to wheelchair users, as well as provide seating 
areas for rest. As highlighted above, in previous phases of the woodland creation 
project a 3.3km section of the London Loop was upgraded which allows better 
access to the woodland for schools (for outdoor classrooms), and more older 
people who may have found the previously muddy parts of the London Loop 
challenging.  
 
 
 
 
Mitigating actions to be taken 
The formal footpath designs will be reviewed and assessed in terms of 
accessibility for wheelchair users and those with physical impairments.  
 
 

 

 

 

Gender Reassignment 
 
This refers to people who are proposing to undergo, are undergoing, or have 
undergone a process (or part of a process) to reassign their sex by changing 
physiological or other attributes of sex. 
  
Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or 
negative] on transgender people? 
 
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected. 
 
 
The proposals are expected to positively impact all residents, regardless of gender 
identity. The project will create 20 hectares of publicly accessible woodland that 
will improve access to nature which brings benefits to physical and mental health 
and wellbeing, help to tackle climate change and improve the borough’s climate 
resilience. 
Mitigating actions to be taken 
 

Page 18



 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

N/A 
 
 

 
Marriage and Civil Partnership  
 
Marriage and civil partnerships are different ways of legally recognising 
relationships. The formation of a civil partnership must remain secular, where-as a 
marriage can be conducted through either religious or civil ceremonies. In the U.K 
both marriages and civil partnerships can be same sex or mixed sex. Civil partners 
must be treated the same as married couples on a wide range of legal matters. 
 
Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or 
negative] on people in a marriage or civil partnership?  
 
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected. 
 
 
The proposals are expected to positively impact all residents, regardless of 
marriage or civil partnership status. The project will create 20 hectares of publicly 
accessible woodland that will improve access to nature which brings benefits to 
physical and mental health and wellbeing, help to tackle climate change and 
improve the borough’s climate resilience. 
Mitigating actions to be taken 
 
 
N/A 
 

 

Pregnancy and maternity  
 
Pregnancy refers to the condition of being pregnant or expecting a baby. Maternity 
refers to the period after the birth and is linked to maternity leave in the 
employment context. In the non-work context, protection against maternity 
discrimination is for 26 weeks after giving birth, and this includes treating a woman 
unfavourably because she is breastfeeding. 
 
Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or 
negative] on pregnancy and maternity? 
 
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected. 
 
 
The proposals are expected to positively impact all residents, regardless of 
whether they are pregnant or in the maternity period. The project will create 20 
hectares of publicly accessible woodland that will improve access to nature which 

Page 19



 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

brings benefits to physical and mental health and wellbeing, help to tackle climate 
change and improve the borough’s climate resilience. Seating areas will be 
provided in the future, so there are places to rest. 
 
 
Mitigating actions to be taken 
 
N/A 
 
 

 

Race 
 
This refers to a group of people defined by their race, colour, and nationality 
(including citizenship), ethnic or national origins. 
 
Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or 
negative] on people of a certain race? 
 
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected. 
 
The proposals are expected to positively impact all residents, regardless of their 
race. The project will create 20 hectares of publicly accessible woodland that will 
improve access to nature which brings benefits to physical and mental health and 
wellbeing, help to tackle climate change and improve the borough’s climate 
resilience. 
Thames21 will be leading the volunteer planting events and have recently been 
working on the Restoring Enfield’s Rivers project, which aims to help local people 
reconnect with nature. The project has engaged over 5,000 volunteers over the 
past three years from a variety of different backgrounds. The background and 
ethnicity of the volunteers was comparable to the variety of ethnic groups present 
in Enfield, and therefore we are confident that the volunteer tree planting events 
can appeal to Enfield’s diverse population.  
 
For example, 6.4% of the volunteers were from Black/Black British of Carribean 
origin which aligns with 5.3% of Enfield’s population from this background. 
However, 53% of the volunteers were from a White (of British origin) background, 
but this only makes up 35% of Enfield’s population. It is therefore important that 
the volunteer events appeal to people of a variety of backgrounds. 
 
Mitigating actions to be taken 
 
Ensure that the volunteer planting is advertised and appeals to many people from 
different backgrounds.  
 
 

 

Page 20



 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

 
Religion and belief  
 
Religion refers to a person’s faith (e.g. Buddhism, Islam, Christianity, Judaism, 
Sikhism, Hinduism). Belief includes religious and philosophical beliefs including 
lack of belief (e.g. Atheism). Generally, a belief should affect your life choices or 
the way you live. 
 
Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or 
negative] on people who follow a religion or belief, including lack of belief? 
 
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected. 
 
 
The proposals are expected to positively impact all residents, regardless of their 
religion or belief. The project will create 20 hectares of publicly accessible 
woodland that will improve access to nature which brings benefits to physical and 
mental health and wellbeing, help to tackle climate change and improve the 
borough’s climate resilience. 
 
Mitigating actions to be taken 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
 
Sex  
 
Sex refers to whether you are a female or male. 
 
Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or 
negative] on females or males?  
 
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected. 
 
 
The proposals are expected to positively impact all residents, regardless of their 
sex. The project will create 20 hectares of publicly accessible woodland that will 
improve access to nature which brings benefits to physical and mental health and 
wellbeing, help to tackle climate change and improve the borough’s climate 
resilience. 
 
 There may be opportunities to advance equality of opportunity for women. This 
could be done by ensuring there is open space within the woodland and along 
proposed footpaths to enable women to feel safer when walking through the area. 
 

Page 21



 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

Mitigating actions to be taken 
 
The final designs will be reviewed by Parks teams and Landscape architects in 
terms of access and safety. 
 

 

 

 

Sexual Orientation  
 
This refers to whether a person is sexually attracted to people of the same sex or 
a different sex to themselves. Please consider the impact on people who identify 
as heterosexual, bisexual, gay, lesbian, non-binary or asexual.  
 
Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or 
negative] on people with a particular sexual orientation? 
 
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected. 
 
 
The proposals are expected to positively impact all residents, regardless of their 
sexual orientation. The project will create 20 hectares of publicly accessible 
woodland that will improve access to nature which brings benefit to physical and 
mental health and wellbeing, help to tackle climate change and improve the 
borough’s climate resilience. 
 
Mitigating actions to be taken 
 
N/A 
 
 

 

Socio-economic deprivation 
 
This refers to people who are disadvantaged due to socio-economic factors e.g. 
unemployment, low income, low academic qualifications or living in a deprived 
area, social housing or unstable housing.  
 
Will this change to service/policy/budget have a differential impact [positive or 
negative] on people who are socio-economically disadvantaged? 
 
Please provide evidence to explain why this group may be particularly affected. 
 
 
Cumulatively the woodland creation, alongside other nature-based interventions 
such as ponds, wetlands and river restoration can significantly reduce the impact 

Page 22



 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

of flooding in Edmonton, which is has the highest risk of flooding in the borough. 
The projects therefore may positively impact these communities and beyond, as 
they aim to improve the quality of blue and green spaces. The Blue and Green 
strategy also recognises the importance of blue and green spaces to mental and 
physical well-being. The woodland creation provides opportunities for people from 
all backgrounds to volunteer for tree planting events. 
 
Car ownership in England depends heavily on household income. According to the 
Department for Transport’s 2019 National Travel Survey, 45% of households in the 
lowest real income level quintile do not own a car or van compared with 14% of 
households in the highest real income level quintile.3  
 
According to research undertaken by Transport for London, the most commonly 
used form of transport for Londoners with lower household incomes (below 
£20,000) is walking.4 The bus is the next most commonly used form of transport 
with 69% of people with lower household incomes taking the bus at least once a 
week compared to 59% of all Londoners. In addition, 42% of Londoners with a 
household income of less than £20,000 have household access to a car compared 
with 65% of Londoners overall, declining to 27% of Londoners in the lowest 
household income bracket (less than £5,000). 
 
The woodland will be accessible via footpaths connecting to Crews Hill Station, as 
well as from the upgraded London Loop footpath which links to Cockfosters tube 
station. An access strategy for the wider woodland project taking into account 
future phases will be developed to ensure that it can be accessed via public 
transport and active travel.     
 
Mitigating actions to be taken. 
 
N/A 
 
 

 

  

 
3 Department for Transport, National Travel Survey, 2019  
4 Transport for London, Travel in London: Understanding our diverse communities, 2019 

Page 23

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/national-travel-survey-2019
https://content.tfl.gov.uk/travel-in-london-understanding-our-diverse-communities-2019.pdf


 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

 

Section 4 – Monitoring and review 
  

How do you intend to monitor and review the effects of this proposal? 
 
Who will be responsible for assessing the effects of this proposal? 
 
 
The effects of the proposal will be reviewed by the following: 

• Analysing the number and diversity of Enfield volunteers who participate in 
the tree planting events 

• Monitoring the number of people that use the woodland once it has been 
established 

• Modelling the flood risk and water quality benefits of the wider scheme 
• Analysis of water quality improvements to affected watercourses 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 24



 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

 

Section 5 – Action plan for mitigating actions 
 

Any actions that are already completed should be captured in the equality analysis 
section above. Any actions that will be implemented once the decision has been 
made should be captured here. 

 
Identified  
Issue  

Action Required Lead 
officer  

Timescale/By  
When  

Costs  Review 
Date/Comments  

Considerations 
for visibility and 
disability access 

Review designs in 
terms of disability 
access and safety 

Jamie 
Kukadia (in 
consultation 
with Parks) 

Pre-
implementation 
of footpath 
works 

Costs 
included 
in 
overall 
budget 

03/04/2023 

Considerations 
for safety for 
women 

Review designs in 
terms of safety for 
women 

Jamie 
Kukadia (in 
consultation 
with Parks) 

Pre-
implementation 
of footpath 
works 

Costs 
included 
in 
overall 
budget 

03/04/2023 

Ensure that 
volunteer events 
appeal to people 
from different 
ages and 
backgrounds 

Review engagement 
methods – ensure 
that the events are 
advertised through 
different media 

Jamie 
Kukadia in 
consultation 
with 
Thames21 

Pre-planting Costs 
included 
in 
overall 
budget 

27/01/2023 

Consideration to 
connect with 
more elderly 
people and 
schools 

Review engagement 
methods i.e. with 
schools, care homes 
etc. to broaden the 
age range of people 
engaged/volunteering 
for future phases 

Jamie 
Kukadia in 
consultation 
with 
Thames21 

Pre-planting 
for following 
phases 

Costs 
included 
in future 
phases 

01/09/2023 

Page 25



 
 

EqIA template approved by EMT 16th June 2020 

 

 

 

 

Page 26


	Agenda
	1 Enfield Chase Restoration Project - Woodland Creation Year 3
	Appendix 1- Phase 3 Woodland Creation Map - 30 DEC 22
	Appendix 2 - Equality Impact Assessment - Woodland Creation Phase 3 - 30 DEC 22
	Introduction
	Section 1 – Equality analysis details
	Section 2 – Summary of proposal
	Section 3 – Equality analysis
	Section 4 – Monitoring and review
	Section 5 – Action plan for mitigating actions



